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independent Auditor's Report
Ta the Members of M/s. Marpol Private Limited

fieport on the standalone Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of M/s. Marpol Private
Limited which comprises the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2019, the Statement of Profit
and Loss, and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial
statements, including a summary of significant accounting pelicies and other explanatory
information.

In aur opinion and ta the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Act in
thiz manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
2018, and profit/loss, and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis far Opinion

e conducted our audil in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (5As) specified under
scction 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are
furcher described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
section of our report, We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the athical
reguirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the provisions
cf the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requiremeants and the Code of Ethics. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obrtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion,

fusnonsibility of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

tne Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of
the Compaiies Act, 2013 ("the Act”) with raspect to the preparation of these standalone
fpencial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
Jurtarmance, and cash fiows o the Company in accordance with the accounting principles
peneraly sccepled in India, Including the accounting Standards specified under section 133
of the Act. This responsibility alse includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accerdance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and
for greventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application ofes
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appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adeguate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statement that give a true and fair view and
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but
to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the company's financial
reparting process

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards of
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
basis of these financial statements,

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

As required by the Companies {Auditor's Report) Order, 2016 {“the Order”), issued by the
Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013, we give in the Annexure A statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3
and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a)  We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpoeses of our audit.

b} In our opinien, proper beoks of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books.

¢} The reports on the accounts of the branch offices of the Company audited under
Section 143(8) of the Act by branch auditors have been sent to us and have been
praperly dealt with by us in preparing this report.
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d) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

e] In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,

f) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on 31st
March, 2019 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on 31st March, 2019 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164 (2) of the Act.

gl With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Reportin "Annexure B”,

h] With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accerdance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to
the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

1. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial
position in its financial statements — Refer Note 32;

2. The Company did nat have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses,

3. There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to
the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For Ganesh Daivajna & Co.
Chartered Accountants

Firm Regn.No. 103054W

Naveen G. i}a' ajna
Partne
M.No.126231

Place: Margao, GGoa
Date: 26" April 2019
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Annexure A to the Auditors” Report

The Annexure referred to in Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of the
Company on the standalone financial statements lor the year ended 31 March 2019, we
report that:

{0 {a) The Company has mamtained proper records showing full particulars, including
quantitative details and situation of fixed assets.
(b) As informed to us the [ixed assets have been physically verified by the
management regularly which in our opinion is reasonable having repard to size of
the Company and the nature ol the assets. No material discrepancies were noticed
on such verification.

{¢) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, the ttle deeds of immovable
properties are held in the name of the Company.

(i) The inventory has been physically verified by the management at regular intervals
during the vear. The discrepancies noticed on physical verification of inventory as
compared with the book records were not material and have been dealt with in the
books of accounts.

(i) According to the information and explanations given 1o us the Company has not
granted unsecured loans to the Companies. firms or other parties. maintained under
Section 189 of the Companies Act, 2013 and hence reporting under Clause (iv) of
Paragraph 3 of the order is not applicable

() In our opmion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has complied with the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act.
with respect 1o the loans and investments made.

(v The Company has not accepted any deposits in contravention to Section 73 & 74 of
Companies Act 2013, No order has been passed by the Company Law Board or
National Company Law Tribunal or Reserve Bank of India or any Court or any
other Tribunal in this regard.

(viy  The Companies Act. 2013 has preseribed the maintenance of cost records under
Section 148(1) of the Act, for any of the services rendered by the Company and the
company has been following the same.

(wity  t4) According to the information and explanations given o us and on the basis of
our examination of the records of the Company, amounts deducted / accrued in the
books of account in respect of undisputed statutory dues including provident fund.
ESIC fund, income tax, GST and other material statutory dues have been regularly
deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate authorities, As
explained 1o us, the Company did not have any dues on account of emplovees’ state
insurance and duty of exeise,




GANESH DAIVAJINA & CO.

CHABRTERED ACCOUNTANTS

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable
in respect of provident fund, ESIC fund, income tax, GST, cess and other material statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2019 for a period of more than six months from the date
they beeame pavable.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us. there are no dues of duty of
customs which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute.

(viiy  The Company does not have any loans or borrowings from any financial institution,
banks, government or debenture holders during the vear. Accordingly. paragraph
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable. Except cash credit account having limit 20
¢rores.

(i) The Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or further
public offer (including debt instruments) and term loans during the year.
Accordingly, paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable.

(%) According to the information and explanations given to us. no material fraud by the
Company or on the Company by its officers or employees has been noticed or
reported during the course of our audit,

(%)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company. the Company has paid / provided for
managerial remuneration in accerdance with the requisite approvals mandated by
the provisions of Section 197, read with Schedule V to the Act,

(xiy  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company is not a nidhi company. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not
applicable.

(xiify  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company. transactions with the related parties are
in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of
such transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as
required by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) According 1o the information and explanations give w us and based on our
examination of the récords of the Company. the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible
debentures during the year.

(xv)  According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company. the Company has not entered into non-
cash wansactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable.
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(efy The Company is not required to be registered under Section 43-IA of the Reserve
Bank of India Act 1934,

For Ganesh Daivajna & Co
Chartered Accountants
N:103054W

aveen G. Daiyajna
Date: 26™ April 2019 Partne
M.No.126231

Place: Margao, Goa
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- t ! 0 the Internal Finan

Under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ["the Act”) We have

audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Marpol Pyt Ltd ("the Company”)
as of 31st March 2019 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of
the Company for the yvear ended on that date.

Mdnage ; ernal Finan

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India ("ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduet of its business, including adherence to
company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and
errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013,

Auditars’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's Internal Financial Controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the "Guidance Note") and
the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAl and deemed to be prescribed under section 143{10)
of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls,
bath applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and pertorm the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding
of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal
control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial
controls system over financial reporting,
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A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally aceepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial contrel over financial reporting includes those
policies and procedures that:

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company;

(2] provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles
and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
autherizations of management and directors of the company; and

(3] provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect on the
tinancial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
ncluding the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Alse, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting te future periods are subject
to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deterjiorate.
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Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting
were operating effectively as at 31st March 2019, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For Ganesh Daivajna & Co
Chartered Accountants
N:103054W

Place: Margao, Goa
Date: 26™ April 2019

M.No.126231
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MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 315T MARCH, 2019

ASSETS
MHon-current Asists
Property, Flant and Equipment
Capital Work-In-progress

Other Intanglble Assers

Financial Assets:
Investments

Other Non-current Assets

Total Mon-current Assets
Current Assets
Inventories
Fimancial Assets:
Trade Recelvables
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Bank Balances other than Cash and Cazh
Loans

Other Curpent Assets

Total Current Assets

Total Assets
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equlty Shire Capital
Reserves and Surplus
Total Equity

Liabilitles
Mon-current Liabilities
Financlal Llabilities:
Borrowlngs
Deferred Tax Liabilitles (Met)

Total Mon-current Liabilities

Current Liabllieles
Financial Liabilithes:
Borrowings

Trade Payables
Gither Financial Liabilities

Crher Current Liabilities
Provisions

Tatal Current Liabilities
Total Liabllities
Tetal Eguity and Liabilities

Significant Accounting Policles

The nates referred 1o above form an integral part of
Financlal Statements

&% per our Report of even date
For Ganesh Daivaina & Co.
Chaszered Accountants

aveen O Dalvaj

Faris

Flace: Margao , Goa

Date @ 26th April 2019

In Rupees
As at A5 at
baity 315t March, 2019 315t March, 2018
2 4.08,56 876 498,22,171
1,62,53,206 5
3 7,896,405 986,474
5.79.06.487 5.08.08,604
4 = 5,000,000
= 5.00,000
5 1.62,016 20,55,247
5,80,68.503 5.33,63.851
£ 12,69.39.564 8.86,33,753
7 | 565,601,242 12,08,11.418
E 767,541 427270135
5 3d.73,054 19,35,340
10 10,97 356 18,56,412
16,16.99.201 16.73,30,383
" 75.18.472 1,01,54,567
29.61,37.236 26,61,18,704
35,42,25.739 31,04,62,555
A ————
36,22,75,119
12 2,99,52,000 2,99,52,000
13 6,26.57.091 45805164
%,26,09,091 757,57, 164
Ia = 10.23.801
15 203,154 16.78,618
2.03,154 27.02,4290
16 10.50,05.546 14,8551.150
17 14.52,29,144 B,37.25.600
14 32,94.339 30,94,339
25.35.20.230 23,54,11,178
19 46,33,486 45,664,605
20 32,50,798 10,47 089
26,14,13.494 24,10,22.562
26,16,16.648 24,37,25.391
35,42,25,739 31,948,555
P '“‘ ATE
i Ijr-.___,l‘-f-_.\‘\:"_
e =
5% (1.-.:.1:’.&35)_ 4!
= /4
1\-&\;‘_/ 3
behalf of the Gosrds® GO ko
. A @1 ",

o
anandiker

.0 Pal
Director Diractor Directar
Dl - 0559055 DIN - OB105268 OIN - 06113481

Place - Margao , Goa

[ate © 26th Aprll 2019



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 315T MARCH, 2019

in Rupees
Hiia Period ended Year ended
315t March, 2019 318t March, 2018
Ineame
Revenus from Operations 21 B8,90,.38,289 59,39,73.909
Other Income 22 4,63,173 27,03,223
Total Income B8,95,01 463 59.66,77.132
Expenses
Cost of Materials Consumed 23 51.06,50,202 39.02,71,619
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods, Stock=-in-
trade and Work-in-proaress 24 (1.32,62,224) 1,44,57,195
Ewcise Duty on Sale of Goods - 1.89,44,223
Employer Benefits Expense 25 4,89.01,943 6,05,81,052
Finance Costs 95,11.242 1,£59,05.635
Depreciation and Amaortlsation Expenses 26 1.00.42,011 1.04,58,504
Other Expenses: 27 10.38.81.825 12,08,22,697
Total Expenses 66,97,25,000 62,.84,40,925
Profit/{Loss) Before Exceptional tem and Tax 1,97,76,464 {3,17.63,793)
Excepticnal Item = 4,33,08,587
Profit/(Loss) After Exceptional ltem and Before Tax 1,97,76,464 (7.50,72.379)
Tax Expense
Current Tax 44,00,000 -
Deferred Tax (14,75,464) {2,43,E83)
Total Tax Expense 29,24,536 (£,43,883)
Prafit/{Loss) for the Year 1.68,51,928 (F,48,28,496)
Earnlngs per Share;
Basic and Diluted 5.63 {24.98)
. -:-. L : T 7 '-.-‘ }\
Significant Accounting Policles 1 S .__\,;_H'R,
e o)
The notes referred to above form an integral part of If|l = J\]f‘\
Financial Statemeants e | AR G :_")|
\e =7

As per our Report of even date
For Canesh Daivajna & Co.
Chartered Accountants

m Reg Mo, 103054W

¥ g

F,

Fahit Pal Fanandiker /
Directar
DIN - 00559055

M, Mo 126231

Place | Margan , Goa
Date : 26th Aprll 2019

Place - Margao , Goa
Date - 26th April 2019
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MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

- i e Ca

Rs. in Crores

Balance as at 1st April, 2018
Changes in Equity Share Capital during 2018-2019

2,99,52,000

Balance as at 31st December, 2018 2,99,52,000
B - Oth uit
Rs. in Crores
General Reserve | Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 §3.92,356 3,74,10,430 4,58,02,786
Total Comprehensive Income for the Year - 1,68,51,928 1,68,51,928
Transaction with Owners in their Capacity as Owners,
recorded directly in equity
Cividends = - =
Dividend Distribution Tax = £ E
Transfer from Retained Earnings = - -
Transfer to General Reserve - - i
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 83,92,356 5,42,62,357 6,26,54,713
T
P AN
AT !
) ',: =t
fl< ; 1=l
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MARPOL FRIVATE LIMITED
STANDALDNE STATEMENT CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAN ENDED 3157 MARCH, 7019

Year ended
11t March, 7019

Cash Flow Fram Operating Activitis
Frafa Belare Tax 1,92 M 463,80
Ad |usime nt for

Dugireciation and &martisation Expenses 1004200 1 De
Fair Value Cain on Financisl instumants recognised thraligh FVERL

Unraalised Forelgn Exchange Gan (Mati

Profit cn Sade of Cutrent ivvestments (el -
InTereat imcome {1,935 16958
Insurance Claim Becaivable {2,68.005.00
IProfith/Laas on Sie af Fraperty, Flant and Equipmmeet (Muth i
Provistons tor Clogboll Debts and Bad Dehis -
Reversal af indirec Tax Provisions -
mninrest Enpense 951 1. 242,06
95 THATG.42
—
Cperating Frofi Before Workling Capital Chamges 2.93.55.300.22
Mncrease) in Trade and Qdher Recwidalies {3,000 0,005 .55
(Bnereatel m fventooies 13, 55.05,811.00)
Duecreass in Tentle Pryables, Other Fimancisl Llabilties ung
Prowisicns & 18.07,361.72
[EEH RN ]
Crsh Cenerated fom Operations 2.49.46,647.55
Direct Thass Padd (Met of Refunds) (25,06, 65000
—
et Cash Flows generated lrom Operating Activities 224,759 878.55

Cash Fhow Trom investing Achivithes

Purchaseal Property, Plant and Equipment and Other intangibile 19, 3%,652.000
Assets (nchuding Adjustments on Account of Capilal Work-in-

aregress, Capital Cradilton and Capits] Advances)

Payment Far CWIF (162,533,208 50)
Praceeds from Sale of Property, Mant and Eoulpment . 3AT800.00
Purchase of Carrent Invasiments -
Pracends from Sale | Redsmption of Current nvesimssts 5,00.000.00
Furchase of frvestrments in Subsidiasiay =
Inteiast Retened 195155540
surance Claim Receivabie LE8005. 00
Frocends from Flaed Depaslls on Maturity .
Met Cash Flows fusod in) frem invesiipg Activities 11,29, 87, 776.92)
Cish Flows from Financing Activities
Repayment af Inag-1erm Borrawings {4 46,00 414,035
Imterest faid 195,17, 242.06)
T gn Proposed Deiderd -
Met Cash Flows (used in} Financing Actividies (5,41,20,656.69)
Rel inisease | (Decrease) in Carh and Cash Equivabents —ty BT 555 06T
MARFOL PRIVATE LIMITED
STANDALDNE STATEMENT CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3157 MARCH, 2019 {conid)
Year ended

315t Miarch, 2010
Cash and Cash Equivalents st baganning of the year, ihe
EompanEns being -
Cish on Mand 3,000.19
Chegues an hand A 26 4x,211.59
Halamces with Banks on Current, Margin and Fixed Doposi
ACcounty 18,35 340,08
Effect of exchamgs rate Noctidlion a

4,96.02.555.06

Cash andl Cash Equsdalents ab end of ihe yedr, the components

being!

Cash fn Mand 1. 7a5.70
Chegues on hand FAHTES T
Balances with Banks om Cureent, Margin and Fixed Drposi

Afcounts 120505507

Effect of exchange rate fluctuaiton -

fet increase | (Decreans) oy disclosed alve

Fog.Gannsh Davajma & Co,

As per our Report of wven date —-{'or a bekall of E{ﬁurﬂ

Hohlt Par Panandiker
Oirgctor Bareciar
DN - DO55S905S OiM - DRIDSZ6R ) Dol - 0BT 15481

Mo 126231

Flach; Masgqan, Flace | Murgad , Goa
Date: 37 june, 2018 Dai= |



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2019

Note A

Corporate Information

Marpol Private Limited (the 'Company') is a private limited company domiciled in India and
incorporated under the provisions of the Companies Act, The registered office of the Company is
located at Margao, Goa. The Company is principally engaged in the manufacturing of Powder.

The Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31st March, 2019 have been reviewed by
the Audit Committee and approved by the Board of Directors at their meetings held on

Basis of preparation
Statement of compliance

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS) as per the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 notifiad
under Section 133 of Companies Act, 2013, (the ‘Act') and other relevant provisions of the Act.

Details of the Company's Accounting Policies are included in Note 1.
Functional and Presentation currency

The Standalone Financlal Statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the

Company's functional currency. All amounts have been rounded-off to the nearest crores, unless
otherwise ndicated,

Basis of measurement

The Standalone Financial Statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for

investments in mutual funds, non-trade equity shares, bonds and provision for employee defined
benefit plans.

Use of estimates and judgements
Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty:

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with the Ind AS requires management to
make Judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies
and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities and disclosures as at date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of the revenues and expenses for the years presented. The
estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that
are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates under different
assumptions and conditions.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basls. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects
both current and future periods.

Critical lJudgments

In the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the
following judgments, which have the maost significant effect on the amount recognised in the
financial statements.

Discount rate used to determine the carrying amount of the Company's defined benefit
obligation. '

In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management
considers the interest rates of government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of
the post-employment benefit obligation.




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
MOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2019
Contingences and Commitments

In the normal course of business, contingent liabilities may arise fram litigations and other claims
against the Company. Where the potential liabilities have a low probability of crystallising or are
very difficult to quantify reliably, we treat them as contingent liabilities. Such liabilities are
disclosed in the notes but are not provided for in the financial statements. Although there can be
no assurance regarding the final outcome of the legal proceedings, we do not expect them to

have a materially adverse impact on our financial position or profitability.

il) Key Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at
the end of the reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are discussed below:

Useful Lives of Property, Plant and Equipment

As described in Note 1(3)(c), the Company reviews the estimated useful lives and residual values
of property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period. During thie current financial
year, the management determined that there were no changes to the useful lives and residual

values of the property, plant and equipment.
Allowances for Doubtful Debts

The Company makes allowances for doubtful debts based on an assessment of the recoverability
of trade and other receivables. The identification of doubtful debts equires use of judgments and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate, such difference will
Impact the carrying value of the trade and other receivables and doubtful debts expenses in the

period in which such estimate has been changed.

Allowances for Inventories

Management reviews the inventory age listing on a periodic basis. This review involves
comparison of the carrying value of the aged inventory items with the respective net realizable
value. The purpose is to ascertain whether an allowance is required to be made in the financial
statements for any obsolete and slow-moving items. Management is satisfied that adeguate
allowance for obsolete and slow-moving inventaries has been made in the financial statements.

Liability far Sales Return

In making judgment for liability for sales return, the management considered the detailed criteria
for the recognition of revenue from the sale of goods set out in Ind AS 18 and in particular,
whether the Company had transferred to the buyer the significant risk and rewards of ownership
of the goods. Following the detailed quantification of the Company's liability towards sales return,
the management is satisfied that significant risk and rewards have been transferred and that
recognition of the revenue in the current year is appropriate, in conjunction with the recognition

of an appropriate liability for sales return.

Accruals for estimated product returns, which are based on historical experience of actual sales
returns and adjustment on account of current market scenario is considered by Company to be

reliable estimate of future sales returns.
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Standards issued but not yver effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") through Companies (indian Accounting Standards)
Amendment Rules, 2019 has natified the following new and amendments 1o Ind AS which the
Company has not applied as they are effective for annual pericd beginning on or after 1 Aprll

2oa.
Ind AS 116 - Leases

Ind AS 116 - Leases

The Company is required to adopt Ind AS 116, Leases from | April 2019, Ind A5 115 introduces
a single, on-halance sheat lease accounting model for lessees. A lesses recognises-a right-of-
use assel representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liabifity representing is
obligatlon to make lease payments. There are receghition exemptions for short-term leases and
leases of |low-value itams. Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard - Le.
lessors continue to classily leases 25 finance or operating leases. It replaces exlsting feases

quidance, Ind AS 17, Leases.

The Cormpany has completed an initial assessment of the patential Impact on its standalone
financial statemants bul has not yet compieted its detailed assessment. The quantitative impact
of adoption of Ind AS |16 on the consolidated financlal statements in the period of (nitial

application {s not reasonably estimable as at present,
Following impacts are expected:

- the total assets and labilities on the balance sheet will increase with a decreass n net toral
aszets, due to the depreciation of right of use assets being on a straight-line basis whilst the

lease liability reduces by the principal amount of repayments:

= Interest expense will increase due 1o the unwinding of the effective interest rate Implicit in the
lease liability. Interest expense will be greater sarlier In a lease's life, due to the higher princlpal
value, causing profit variability over the term of lease, This effect may be partially mitigated due

1o the pumber of ieases held by Cochlear a1 various stages of thelr terms: and

- operating cash flows will be higher and financing cash Mlows will be lower, as repaymant of the

principal portion of all lease fiabilities will be classified as financing activities,

I addition to the above, the following amendments tn existing standards have boan issued, are
not yet effective and are not expected to have a significant impact on the standalone financial

statements:

- Amendments ta Ind AS 103, Business Combinations, and nd A5 11 1, Jeint Arrangements: This
interpretation ciarifies how an entity accounts for (nereasing its interest in a folm operation thati

meets the definition of a business,

- Amendments 1o Ind A% 109, Financial Instruments: amendments telating to the classification of

particular prepayable financlal assets

- Amgndments to Ind AS 12, Income Tawes, clarify that all income tax consequences of dividends
Uncluding payments on financlal (nstruments classified as equity) are recognized consistently
with the transactions that generated the distributable profits - e in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity, Further Appendix €, uncertalnly ever income tax treatments
has been added to clarify how entities should reflect uncertaintios over income tax treatments, In
particular when assessing the aulcome a ta¥ authority might reach with full knowledge and

information if it were to make an examination,

'~ Amendment ta Ind AS 19, Empioyes Benefits - The amendment to lnd AS 19 clarifies that on
amendment, curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan, the current service cost and nat
interest for the remainder of the annual reporting period are calculated wsing updated actuarial
assumptions - i.e. consistent with the calculation of a gain or loss on the plan amendmant,
curtailment or settiement, This amendment also clarifies that an entity first determines any past
service cost, or A gain or loss on setttement, without considering the effect of the asset ceiling.
This amount |s recognized in profit or loss. The entity then determines the effect of the asser
celling after plan amendmant, curtaliment or settlement, Any changs in that effect is recognized

I other comprehensive incomeé (except for amounts included In et nterest),

- Amendments o Ind AS 23, Borrowing Costs, clarify that the general barrowings pool used ro
calculate eligible borrowing costs excludes only borrowings that specifically finance qualifying

assets that are still under development or construction,

- Amendments 1o Ind A5 28, Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures; When applying the
equity method, 4 non-investment entity that has an interest in-an investment entity associate or
Joint venture can elect to retaln the falr value accounting apphied by the associate or jaint
verture 10 its subsidiaries. Venture capital and other qualifying organizatlons can elect o
measure investments in associates or joint ventures at fair value thraugh profit o loss instead of
applying the equity method. The amendmenis clarify thal both these elections apply for each

Investment. entity associate or jolnt venture separately,
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Mote |ll Significant Accounting Policies

1 Classification of Assets and Liabilities

Schedule 1Il to the Act, requires assets and liabilities to be classified as either Current or Non-
current.

(a) An asset shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:

(i} it is expected to be realised in, or is intended for sale or consumption in, the Company's
normal operating cycle;

(i} it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded:
(iii) it is expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(v} it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date,

{b) All assets other than current assets shall be classified as non-current.

(c) A liability shall be classified as current when it satisfies any of the following criteria:
(i) it is expected to be settled in the Company's normal operating cycle;
(i) it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;
(11} it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting date; or

(iv) the Company does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for
at least twelve months after the reporting date. Terms of a liability that could, at the option

of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity instruments do not affect
its classification.

(d) All liabilities other than current liabilities shall be classified as non-current,
2 Operating Cycle

An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their
realisation in cash or cash equivalents. The Company has ascertained the operating cycle as

twelve months for the purpose of current or non-current classification of assets and
liabilities.

3 Property, Plant and Equipment
{a) Recognition and Measurement

An item of Property, Plant and Equipment that qualifies far recognition as an asset is initially
measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment, if any.

The cost of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises its purchase price, including
import duties and non-refundable purchase taxes, after deducting trade discounts and
rebates and any costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition
necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. The
initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located is included in the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment.

The cost of a self-constructed item of Property, Plant and Equipment comprises the cost of
materials and direct labor, any other costs directly attributable to bringing the item to
working condition for its intended use, and estimated costs of dismantling and removing the
item and restoring the site on which It is located,

Tangible Property, Plant and Equipment under construction are disclosed as Capital Work-in-
progress, Item of Capital Work-in-progress |s carried at cost using the principles of valuation
of item of property, plant and equipment till it is ready for use, the manner in which intended
by management.
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Mote |ll: Significant Accounting Policies {contd.)
3 Property, Plant and Equipment (contd.)

{b) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure |s capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits
associated with the expenditure will flow te the Company.

{c} Depreciation

The depreciable amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is allocated on a
systematic basis aver its useful life. The Company provides depreciation on the straight line
method. The Company believes that straight line method reflects the pattern in which the
asset's future economic benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. Based on
internal technical evaluation, the management believes useful lives of the assets are
appropriate. The depreciation method is reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if
there has been a significant change in the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset, the method is changed to reflect the changed
pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an accounting estimate in accordance
with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

Each part of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment with a cost that is significant in relation
to the total cost of the item is depreciated separately.

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit
and Loss unless it Is included In the carrying amount of another asset,

The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each financial year-end
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change(s) is accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Palicies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:

Useful Lives Useful Lives
{in years) (in years)
o — - as per Companies | - as estimated by

Act, 2013 the Company
Bulidings 30-60 30-60
Plant and Equipments 10-20 10-25
Furniture and Fixtures 10 10
Vehicles 10 10
Office Equipments 5 5
Computers 3-6 3-6
Assets for Scientific Research 10-20 20
Assets on Operating Lease MA 5

Depreciation on additions (disposals) is provided on a pro-rata basis i.e. from (upto) the date
on which asset is ready for use (disposed off).

Depreciation charge for the year is displayed as depreciation on-the face of Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss,

Leasehold lands and |leasehold improvemants are amortised over the primary period of lease.

{d) Disposal

The carrying amount of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment is derecognised on disposal
or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or dispasal. The gain or loss
arising from the derecognition of an item of Property, Plant and Equipment s included in
Standalone Statement of Profit Loss when the item Is derecognised.
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Note Ill: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)
4 Investment Property

(a) Recognition and Measurement

Land or building held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services ar for administrative purposes; or sale in the
ordinary course of business is recognised as Investment Property, Land held for a currently
undetermined future use is also recognised as Investment Property.

An investment property is measured initially at its cost. The cost of an investment property
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable expenditure. After |nitial recagnition,

the Company carries the investment property at the cost less accumulated depreciation and
accumulated impairment, if any.

{b) Depreciation

After initial recognition, the Company measures all of its investment property in accordance
with Ind AS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment requirements for cost model. The depreciable
amount of an item of investment property is allocated on a systematic basis over its useful life.
The Company provides depreciation on the straight line method. The Company believes that
straight line method reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic benefits are
expected to be consumed by the Company. Based on internal technical evaluation, the
management believes useful lives of the assets are appropriate. The depreciation method is
reviewed at least at each financial year-end and, if there has been a significant change in the
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, the
method is changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errars.

The depreciation charge for each period is generally recognised in the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss.

The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each financial year-end
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change(s) is accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors. The estimated useful lives for the current and comparative
periods are as follows:

Useful Lives Useful Lives
(in years) (in years)
Assat Class - as per Companies | - as estimated by
Act, 2013 the Company
Buildings 30-60 30-60

{c) Fair Value

Fair value of investment property is based on a valuation by an independent valuer who holds a
recognised and relevant professional qualification and has recent experience in the location

and category of the investment property being valued. The fair value of investment property is
disclosed in the Note 3. -

(d) Gain or loss on Disposal

Any gain or loss on disposal of an Investment Property is recognised in the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss.
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Nate lli: Significant Accounting Policies {contd.)
5 Other Intangible Assets

(a) Recognition and Measurement

An intangible asset is an identifiable non-monetary asset without physical substance,
Intangible assets are initially measured at its cost and then carried at the cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment, if any.

Research and Development

Research is original and planned investigation undertaken with the prospect of gaining new
scientific or technical knowledge and understanding. Expenditure incurred on research of an

internal project is recognised as an expense in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, when
it is incurred.

Development Is the application of research findings or other knowledge to a plan or design for
the production of new or substantially improved materials, devices, products, processes,
systems or services before the start of commercial production or use. An intangible asset
arising from development is recognised if, and only if, the following criteria are met:

(a) it is technically feasibile to complete the intangible asset so that it will be available for
use or sale.

(b) the Company intends to camplete the intangible asset and use or sell it.

(c) the Company has ability to use or sell the intangible asset.

(d) the Company can demonstrate how the intangible asset will generate probable future
economic benefits,

(e) the Company has adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the
development and to use or sell the intangible asset.

(f) the Company has ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the
intangible asset during its development.

Expenditure on research activities is recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as
incurred.

{b) Subsequent Expenditure

Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits
embodied in the specific asset to which it relates.All other expenditure, including expenditure
on internally generated goodwill and brands, is recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit
and Lass as incurred.

{c) Amortisation

The Company amortises Other Intangible Assets on the straight line method. The Company
believes that straight line method reflects the pattern in which the asset's future economic
benefits are expected to be consumed by the Company. The amartisation method is reviewed
at least at each financial year-end and, if there has been a significant change in the expected
pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the asset, the method is
changed to reflect the changed pattern. Such a change is accounted for as a change in an

accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Palicies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors.

The residual value and the useful life of an asset is reviewed at least at each financial year-end
and, if expectations differ from previous estimates, the change(s) is accounted for as a change
in an accounting estimate in accordance with Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors. The estimated useful lives as estimated by management are

as follows:
Asset Cl Useful Lives (in years)
s5el Liass - as estimated by the Company
Software 3 Years
Y T
HoS7

S Al e
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Note lli: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.}

& Non-current assets or disposal group held for sale

Non-current assets, or disposal groups comprising assets and liabilities are classified as held for zale if it s
highly probable that they will be recovered primarily through sale rather than through continuing use.

Such assets, or disposal groups, are generally measured at the lower of thalr carrying amount and fair value
less costs to sell, Any resultant loss on a dispasal group is allocated first to goodwill, and then ta remaining
assets and llabilities on pro rata basis, except that no less |s allocated to inventories, financial assers, deferred
tax assets, employee benefit assets, and biological assets, which continue to be measured in accardance with
the Company's other accounting policies. Losses on initial classification as held for sale and subsequent gains
and losses on re-measuremant are recognised in Standalane Staterment of Profit and Loss.

Once assets classified as held-for-sale, then Property, Plant and Equipment, Investment Property and Other
Intangible Assets are no longer required to be depreciated or amortised,

Employee Benafits

{a) Short-term Employee Benefits:

short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basls and are expensed as the
related service is provided. A liability is recognised for the amount expacied (o be paid e.g., under shart-tarm

cash bonus, if the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation 1o pay this amount as a result of past
service provided by the employee, and the amount of ohligation can be estimated reliably.

(b} Post-Employment Benefits;
Defined contribution plans

A defined contribution plan is & post-employment benefit plan under which an entity pays fixed
contributions into a separate entity.and will have no legal or constructive abligation to pay further amounts,

(i} Provident and Family Pension Fund

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive post employment benefits In respect of
provident and family pension fund, in which both the -employees and the Company make monthly
cantributions at a specified percentage of the employees® eligible salary {currently 12% of employees’
eligible salary). The contributions are made 1o the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner (RPFC) which are
ctharged to the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred,

In respect of contribution o RPFC, the Company hag no further obligations beyond making the contribution,
and hence, such employee benefit plan is classified as Defined Contribution Plan. The Company's
contribution |s recognised as an expense in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH, 2019

Note lil: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)
7 Employee Benefits (contd.)

(b) Post-Employment Benefits (contd.):
Defined contribution plans (contd.)
(ii) Superannuation

The eligible employees of the Company are entitled to receive post employment benefits in
respect of superannuation fund in which the Company makes annual contribution at a
specified percentage of the employees' eligible salary (currently 15% of employees'eligible
salary). The contributions are made to the Life Insurance Corporation of India (LIC).
Superannuation is classified as Defined Contribution Plan as the Company has no further
obligations beyond making the contribution. The Company's contribution is recognised as an
expense in rthe Standalone Statement of Profit and | oss.

Defined Benefit Plans

A defined benefit plan is a post-employment benefit plan other than a defined contribution
plan. The Company's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated by
estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have earned in the current and prior
periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligation (s performed annually by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a potential asset for
the Company, the recognised asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits
available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or reductions in future contributions
to the plan (‘the asset ceiling'). In order to calculate the present value of economic benefits,
consideration is given to any minimum funding requirements.

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and
losses, the return on plan assets (excluding interest) and the effect of the asset ceiling (if any,
excluding interest), are recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. The Company
determines the net interest expense (income) on the net defined benefit liability (asset) for
the period by applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation at the
beginning of the annual period to the then-net defined benefit liability (asset), taking into
account any changes in the net defined benefit liability (asset) during the period as a result of
contributions and benefit payments. Net interest expense and other expenses related to
rdefined henefit nlans are reconnised in Standalane Statement Af Prafit and | nss

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curtailed, the resulting change in
benefit that relates to past service (‘past service cost’ or 'past service gain') or the gain or
loss on curtailment Is recognised immediately in profit or loss. The Company recognises
gains and losses on the settlement of a defined benefit nlan when the settlement occurs.
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7 Employee Benefits (contd.)
Defined Benefit Plans (contd.)
Gratuity

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering
eligible employees. The plan provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at
retirement, death while in employment or on termination of employment of an amount
equivalent to 15 days to one month salary payable for each completed year of service or pan
thereof in excess of six months depending upon category of employee. Vesting occurs upon
completion of five years of service, The Company has obtained insurance policies with the Life
Insurance Corporation of India (LIC) and makes an annual contribution to LIC for amounts
notified by LIC. The Company accounts for gratuity benefits payable in future based on an
independent external actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year using the projected

unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses are recognised as Other Comprehenslve
Income.

Provident Fund Trust

In respect of contribution to the trust set up by the Company, since the Company is obligated
to meet interest shortfall, if any, with respect to covered employees, such employee benefit
plan is classified as Defined Benefit Plan. Any cbligation in this respect is measured on the
basis of independent actuarial valuation.

(c) Other Long-term Employee Benefits - Compensated Absences
The Company provides for encashment of leave or leave with pay subject to certaln rules. The
employees are entitled to accumulate leave subject to certain limits for future encashment H
availment. The Company makes provision for compensated absences based an an
independent actuarial valuation carried out at the end of the year. Actuarial galns and losses
are recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss,

8 Inventories
(a) Measurement of Inventory
The Company measures its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
{b) Cost of Inventories

The cost of inventories shall comprise all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other
costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,

The costs of purchase of inventories comprise the purchase price, import duties and other
taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable by the entity from the taxing authorities),
and transport, handling and other costs directly attributable to the acquisition of finished
goods, materials and services. Trade discounts, rebates and other similar items are deducted
In determining the costs of purchase,

The costs of conversion of inventories Include costs directly related to the units of production

and a systernatic allocation of fixed and variable production overheads that are incurred in
converting materials into finished goods.

Other costs are included in the cost of inventories only to the extent that they are incurred in
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition,

The cost of inventorles is assigned by weighted average cost formula. The Company uses the
same cost formula for all inventories having a similar nature and use to the Company.
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Nate |Il; Slani Poli (contd.)
8 Inventories (Contd.)
(c) Met realisable value

Met realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the
estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, Met
realisable value |s ascertained for each item of inventories with reference to the selling prices

of related finished products,

The practice of writing inventories down below cost to riet realisable value s consistent with
the view that assets should not be carried in excess of amounts expected to be realised from
their sale or use. Inventories are usually written down to net realisable value item by Item.
Estimates of net realisable value of finished goods and stock-in-trade are based on the most
reliable evidence available at the time the estimates are made, of the amount the inventaries
are expected to realise, These estimates take into consideration fluctuations of price or cost
directly relating to events occurring after the end of the period to the extent that such events
confirm conditions existing at the end of the period. Materials and ather supplies held for use
in the production of inventories are not written down below cost Iif the finished products in
which they will be incorporated are expected to be sold ar or above cost. Howewer, when a
decline In the price of materials indicates that the cost of the finished products excesds net

realisable value, the materials are written down to net realisable value.

Amount of any reversal of write-down of inventaries shall be recognised as an expense as
when the event occurs, '

A new assessment is made of net realisable value in each subsequent period, When the
circumstances that previously caused inventories to be written down below cost no longer
exist or when there is clear evidence of an increase in net realisable value because of changed
economic circumstances, the amount of the write-down is reversed. Amounts such reversed
shall be recongnised as a reduction in the amount of inventories recongnised as an expense in

the period in which reversal occurs,

(d) Valuation of Spare parts, stand-by equipments and servicing equipments

Spare parts, stand-by equipment and servicing equipment are recognised as Property, Plant
and Equipment if and only if it is probable that future economic benefits associated with them
will flow to the Company and their cost can be measured refiably. Otherwise such ltems are

classified and recognised as Inventory.
9 Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash comprises cash on hand and demand deposits. Cash equivalents are shart-term, highly
liguid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of meeting
short-term cash commitments rather than for investment or ather purposes. For an investment to
qualify as a cash equivalent it must be readily convertible to a known amount of cash and be
subject to an Insignificant risk of changes in value. Therefare, an investment normally qualifies as
a cash equivalent only when it has a short maturity of, say, three months ar less from the date of
acquisition. Bank overdrafts which are repayahle on demand form an integral part of the

Company's cash management, hence bank overdrafts are included as a companent of
cash and cash equivalents,

10 Government Grants

Government grants are assistance by government in the form of transfers of resources to the
Company in return for past or future compliance with certain conditions relating to the operating
activities of the Company. Government :grants are not he recognised until there is reasonahle
assurance that the Company will comply with the conditions attaching to them and the grants will
be received. Government grants are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss on a SySTRMAtic
basis over the periods In which the Company recognises as expenses the related costs for which

the grants are Intended to compensate.
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Note lII: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)

11

12

Provisions and Contingent Liabilities

A provision is recognised If, as a result of a past event, the Company has a present legal or
constructive obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an outflow of
economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows (representing the best estimate of the
expenditure required to settle the present obligation at the balance sheet date) at a pre-tax
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks

specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as finance cost.
Expected future operating losses are not provided for.

Warranties

A provision for warranties is recognised when the underlying products or services are sold.
The provision is based on technical evaluation, historical warranty data and a weighting of
all possible outcomes by their associated probabilities.

Restructuring

A provision for restructuring is recognised when the Company has approved a detailed
formal restructuring plan, and the restructuring either has commenced or has been
announced publicly.

Onerous contracts

A contract is considered to be onerous when the expected ecanomic benefits to be derived
by the Company from the contract are lower than the unavoidable cost of meeting its
obligations under the contract. The provision for an onerous contract is measured at the
present value of the lower of the expected cost of terminating the contract and the expected
net cost of continuing with the contract. Before such a provision Is made, the Company
recognises any impairment loss on the assets associated with that contract,

Revenue Recognition

Effective 1 April, 2018, the Company has adopted Ind AS 115 'Revenue from contracts with
customers',

Revenue is recognised to depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in
an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is adjusted for estimated customer returns,
rebates and other similar allowances. Revenue from sale of goods is recognized as per
below 5 step model:

- Step 1: Identify the contract(s) with a customer

- Step 2! |dentify the performance obligation in contract

« Step 3: Determine the transaction price

» Step 4, Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
- Step 5: Recognise revenue when (or as) the entity satisfies a performance ohligation

Under Ind AS 115, revenue is recognized when (or as) a performance obligation is satisfied,
Il.e. when ‘control’ of the goods or services underlying the particular perfermance obligation
Is transferred to the customer,i.e. at which time all the following conditions are satisfied:

+ The company has transferred to the buyer the significant risk & rewards of the ownership
of the goods

» The company retains neither continuing managerial involvement to the degree usually
associated with ownership nor effective control over the goods sold

+ The amount of revenue can be measured rellably

- It is probable that economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the
company and

The costs incurred or to be incurred in respect of the transaction can be measured reliably,
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEM ENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH,

Note |lI: Significant Accounting Policies {contd.)

12 Revenue Recognition (contd.)

13

Interest Income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method as set out in Ind AS 109 -
Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of the
revenue can be measured reliably. The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or a financial liability (or group of financial assets or

financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest expense aver the relevant
period.

Royalty Income

Royalty income is recognised on an accrual basis in accordance with the substance of the
relevant agreement when it is probable that the economic benefits associated with the

transaction will flow to the Company and the amount of the revenue can be measured
reliably.

Dividend Income

Dividend income is recognised when right to receive payment is established and it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the Company
and the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably.

Foreign Currency Transactions

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates whereas presentation currency is thecurrency in which the financial

statements are presented. Indian Rupee is the functional as well as presentation currency for
the Company.

A foreign currency transaction is recorded, on initial recognition in the functional currency,
by applying to the foreign currency amount the spot exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

At the end of each reporting period, foreign currency monetary items are translated using
the closing rate whereas non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in
a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction: and
non-monetary items that are measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was measured.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary
ltemns at rates different from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during
the period or in previous Financial Statements are recognised in the Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary
item is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income, any exchange component of that gain or
loss is recognised in Other Comprehensive Income. Conversely, when a gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss Is recognised in Standalone Statement

of Profit and Loss.
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Note Ik Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)
14 Taxation
Income tax

Income tax comprises current tax and deferred tax expense, It is recognised In Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss except to the extent that it relates 1o 2 business combination or 1o an
itern recognised directly in Equity of in Other Comprehensive Income.

Current tax

Current tax comprises the éxpected tax payable or recelvable on the taxable income ar loss for
the year and any adjustment to the tax payable o recelvable In respect of previous years. Tha
amaount of current tax reflects the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or recelved
after considering the uncertainty, if any, related 1o income taxes. it Is measured Using tax rates
(and tax laws) enacted or substantively eracted by the reporting date.

Deferred tax
Deferred tax is recognised in respect of tempaorary differences betwesn the carrying amounts of
assets and |labilities for financial reporting purposes and the corresponding amounts used for

taxatlen purposes, Deferred tax Is also recognised in respect of carried forward tax losses and tax
credits. Defarred tax is not recognised for

a temporary differences arising on the initial recognition of assets or liabilities in a transaction
that is not a business combination and that affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss at the time of the transaction:

b taxable temporary differences aresing on the initial recognition of goodwill,

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it fg probable that future taxable profits will
be available against which they can be used. The existence of unused tax losses |5 strang evidence
that future taxable profit may not be avaitahls, Therefare, in case of a history of recant losses, the
Company recognises a deferred tax assol only to the extent that it has sufficient taxable
temporary differences or there is convincing other evidence that sufficlent taxable profit will be
available agalnst which such deferred tax asset can be realised. Deferred tax assets -
unrecognised or recognised, are reviewed at each reporting date and are recognised [ reduced ta

the extent that it |s probable | no longer probable respectively that the related tax banefit will be
realised.

Deferred tax is measiured at the tax rates thar are expected to apply to the period when the azsat
Is realised or the liability is sertled, based on the laws that hawe been enacted or substantively
‘enacted by the reparting date.

The measurement of deferred tax reflects the rax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date, to recover or settle the carrying
amount of its assets and llablilities,

Deferred tax assets and liabllities are offset if there s a legally enfarceable right to offset current
tax liabilities and assets, and they relate 1o income taxes levied by the same tax authority on the
same taxable entity, or on different tax entities, but they intend to setile current tax llabtlities and
as5ets on a net basis or their tax assets and liabilities will be realised simultaneously.
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Noze Ili; Significant Accounting Policies (cantd.)
15 Lease

Leases of Praperty, Plant and Equipment where the Company, as lessee, has substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership are classified as finance leases. Finance leases are capitalised at
the lease's inception at the fair value of the leased property ar, if lower, the present value of the
minimum |ease payments. The corresponding rental abligations, net of finance charges, are
Included In borrowings or the financial llabilities as appropriate. Each lease payment is allocated
between the liability and finance cost, The finance cost is charged to the Standalone Statament of
Profit and Loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of intarest on the
remaining balance of the liabllity for each period.

At inception of an arrangement, |t is determined whether the arrangement is or contains a lease.
AL Inception or on reassessment of the arrangement that contains a lease, the payments and othar
consideration required by such an arrangement are separated nto those for the lease and those
for other elements on the basis of their relative fair values, If It is concluded for a finance lease
that it is Impracticable to separate the payments reliably, then an asset and a fability are
recognised at-an amount equal to the fair value of the underlying asset. The hability is reduced as
payments are made and an Imputed finance cost on the liability Is recognised wsing the
incremental borrawing rate;

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are not transferred to
the Campany as lessee are classifled as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases
inet of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to Standalone Statement of Profit and
Loss on straight-line basis over the period of the lease unisss the payments are structured to
Increase in line with expected genaral inflation ta compensate for the lessor's expected
Inflationary cost Increases.
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Note lll: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)
16 Financial Instruments
(a) Recognition and Initial measuremeant
Trade recelvables and debt securities issued are initially recognised when they are originated. All

other financial assets and financial liabllities are Initially recognised when the Company becomes
a party to the contractual terms of the instrument,

A financial asset ar financial liability is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at Fair

Value through Profit and Less (FVTPL), transaction cosis that are directly attrlbutable to its
acquisition or issue,

ib) Classification and subsequent measurement
Financlal assets

On Initial recegnition, a financial asset is measured at
- amaortised cost,

- Falr Value through Other Comprehensive Income (FVOCT) - debt Investment;

- Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income - equity investment; or
- FWTEL

Financial assets are not reclassified subseguent to their initial recognition, except if and in the
period the Company changes Its business model for managing financlal assets.

A financial asset Is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is
not designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset Is held within a business modsl whose ohjective Is to hold assets to collect
contractual cash flows; and

- the contractual terms of the financial assat give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding,

A debt investment is measured at FVYOCI if it meets both of the following conditions and is not
designated as at FVTPL:

- the asset js held within a business model whose objective Is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financlal assets: and

- the contractual terms of the financial asser give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are
solely payments of princlpal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

On initlal recognition of an equity Investment that |s not held for trading, the Company may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in the investment's fair value in OCI (designated
as FWOCI - equity investment). This election s made on an investment-by-investment basls.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOC! as described above are
measured at FVTPL, This includes all derivative financial assets. On initial recognition, the
Company may Irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the requlrements to
be measured at amortised cost or at FVOC! as at FVTEL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.
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Note lll: Significant Accounting Policles (contd.)

16 Financial Instruments (contd.)
(b) Classification and subsequent measurement {contd.)

Financial assets: Subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial assets at FVTPL |[These assets are subseguently measured at fair value. Net gains and
losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
amortised cost effective interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by
impairment losses, Interest income, foreign exchange gains and
losses and impairment are recognised in Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss, Any gain or loss on derecognition Is recognised in
Srarement af Profit and L s

Debt These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Interest
investments at FVOCH income under the effective interest method, foreign exchange gains
and losses and impairment are recognised in Standalone Statement of
Profit and Loss. Other net gains and losses are recognised In OCL On
derecognition, gains and losses accumulated in OCI are reclassified
to Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends arg
FVOC recognised as income in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss
unless the dividend elearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of
the investment. Other net gains and losses are recognised in OCI and
are not reclassified to Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss,

Financial liabilities: Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is
classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading, or it is a derivative or it is designated
as such on initial recognition. Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at fair value and net
gains and losses, including any interest expense, are recognised In Statement of Profit and Loss.
Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognised |n
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in
Standalone Statement

of Profit and Loss.
(c) Derecognition

Financial assets

The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights te the cash flows from
the financial asset expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a
transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset
are transferred or In which the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the
risks and rewards of ownership and does

not retain control of the financial asser,

If the Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers agcars recognised on its balance
sheet, but retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets,
the transferred assets are not derecognised,

Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged
or cancelled, ar expire,

The Company alse derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash
flows under the madified terms are substantially different. In this case, a new financial liability
based on the modified terms is recognised at fair value. The difference between the carrying
amount of the financial llability extinguished and the new financial liability with modified terms
is recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss,

(d) Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance
sheet when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the
amounts and it intends either to settlwmgg_g‘ a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously. "u:\;_='-\;.\_ r ol

i "
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No : Sign t A [1] cies {contd,
17 Borrowing Cost

The Company capitalises borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or
production of a gualifying asset as part of the cost of that asset. The Company recognises other
borrowing costs as an expense in the period in which it incurs them. Borrowing costs are interest and
other costs that the Company Incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds including exchange
differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an

adjustment to Interest costs.

A gualifying asset Is an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get ready for its

intended use or sale,
18 Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share

The Company calculates basic earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to ordinary
equity holders and, if presented, profit or loss from cantinuing operations attributable to those equity

holders.

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing profit or loss attributable to ardinary equity holders (the
numerator) by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding (the denominator) during the

period.

The weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period and for all periods
presented shall be adjusted for events, ather than the conversion of potential ordinary shares, that have

changed the number of ordinary shares outstanding without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share

The Company calculates diluted earnings per share amounts for profit or loss attributable to ordinary
equity holders and, If presented, profit or loss from continuing operations attributable to those equity

holders,

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the Company adjusts profit or loss attributable
to ordinary equity holders, and the weighted average number of shares outstanding, for the effects of all

dilutive potential erdinary shares, if any.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the weighted average number of ardinary
shares calculated for calculating basic earnings per share and adjusted the weighted average number of

ordinary shares that wauld be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive

potential ordinary shares into ordinary shares, Dilutive petential ardinary shares are deemed to have been
converted into ordinary shares at the beginning of the period or, if later, the: date of the issue of the

potential ordinary shares.
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Mote lli: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)

19 Impairment Loss
Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses an:
- financial assets measured at amartised cost; and
- financial assets measured at FVOCI- debt investments.

At each reparting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amaortised
cost are credit-impaired. A financial asset is ‘creditimpaired’ when one or more events that

have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have
accurred,

In accordance with Ind AS 109 - Financial Instruments, the Company follows ‘simplified
approach’ for recagnition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it
recognises impairment loss allowance based an lifetime expected credit loss at each reporting
date, right from its initial recognition.

The gross carrying amount of a financial assat is written off (sither partially or in full) to the
extent that there is no realistic prospect of recovery. This is generally the case when the
Company determines that the debtor does not have assets or sources of income that could
generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. However, financial
assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply
with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

Impalrment of Non Financial Assets

An impairment loss is the amount by which the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit exceeds its recoverable amaount. The recoverable amount of an asset or a cash-
generating unit is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use. Fair
value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
arderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Value In use is
based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to thair present value using a pre-tax
discount rate.

The Company assesses at the end of each reporting period whether there is any indication that
an asset is impaired. In assessing whether there s any indication that an asset may be
impaired, the Company considers External as well as Internal Source of Infarmation. If any such
indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount for the individual asset. If,
and only if, the recoverable amount of an asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss (s recognised
Immediately in profit or loss, unless the asset is carried at revalued amount in accordance with
another Standard.

If it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the Company
determines the recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs (the
asset's cash-generating unit). A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of
assets that generates cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other
assets or groups of assets. The Company recognises impairment loss for a cash-generating
unit if, and only if, the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit is less than the carrying
amount of the cash-generating unit. The Company allocates impairment loss of cash-
generating units first to the carrying amount of goodwill allocated to the cash-generating units,
if any, and then, to the other assets of the cash-generating units pro rata on the basis of the
carrying amount of each asset in the cash-generating unit. These reductions in carrying
amounts shall be treated as impairment losses on individual assets and recognised accordingly.
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ite III: Significant Accounting Policies (contd.)
20 Measurement of fair values

A number of the Companies accounting policies and disclosures require the measurement of
fair values, for both financial and non-financial assets and liabilities.

The Company has an established control framework with respect to the measurement of fair
values. This includes a wvaluation team that has overall responsibility for overseeing all

significant fair value measurements, including Level 3 fair values, and-reports directly to the
Chief Financial Officer.

The valuation team regularly reviews significant unobservable inputs and valuation
adjustments. If third party information, such as broker quotes or pricing services, is used to
measure fair values, then the valuation team assesses the evidence obtained from the third
parties to support the conclusion that these valuations meet the requirements of Ind AS,
including the level in the fair value hierarchy in which the valuations should be classified.

Fair values are categorised into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on the inputs
used in the valuation techniques as follows:

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Leve| 2: inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset
or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices).

Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data
(unobservable inputs)

When measuring the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Company uses observable market
data as far as possible. If the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability fall
into different levels of the fair value hierarchy, then the fair value measurement is categorised
in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that |s
significant to the entire measurement.

The Company recognises transfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the
reporting period during which the change has occurred.

21 Investment in Subsidiaries
A subsidiary is an entity that is controlled by the Company.
The Company accounts for the investments in equity shares of subsidiaries at cast in
accordance with Ind AS 27 - Separate Financial Statements.
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MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 4: Non-current Investments

Investments in Equity Instruments:
I Others

Goa Urban Co-op. Bank
Wil
{10.000 Equity Shares of Rs. 50 each)

Total Non-current Investments

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments
Aggregate market value of unguoted investments
Aggregate amount of unquoted investments

Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investments

In Rupees
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
= 5,00,000
- 5.00,000
- 5,00,000
- 5,00,000
Mil Nil
A PRIV
.-‘I“:""/ .: ""f":
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 5: Other non-current assets

Unsecured and Considered Good
Capital Advances
Income Tax Paid (Net of Provisions)

Note 6: Inventaries
Raw Materials
Work-in-progress
Finished Goods
Stores and Spares

As at
31st March, 2019

In Rupees

As at
31st March, 2018

1,62,016

20,55,247

1,62,016 20,55,247
5,35,48,330 3,61,68,424
87.57,553 1,22,16,234
4,03,24,577 2,36,03,672
2,43,09,104 1,66,45,423
12,69,39,564_ 8,86.33,753

e ————————




MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 7: Trade Recelvables

Crvardue for a Period Exceeding Six Months;

Secured, Coansidered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful

Less: Provision for Bad and Doubtful Debts

Other Receivabias:
Sacured, Considered Good
Unsecured, Considered Good
Doubtful

Less Provision for Bad and Dowbiful Debts

In Rupaes
As at As at
318t March, 2019 31st March, 2018

19,35.944 5.81.827
1,37.61,429 14004122
1.56,97.373 1,45,85,949
1.37.61,429 1,40,04,122

159,35,944 581,827
15,46,25.305 12,02,29,590
15,46,25,305 12,02,29,590

15,46,25,305 12,02,29,590

15: 24 | 1,416
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 8: Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Banks Balances

Note 9: Bank Balance other than Cash and cash

equivalents

Fixed Deposit with Bank

Note 10: Loans

Unsecured and Considered Good

Security Deposits

Note 11: Other Curr

Unsecured and Considered Good
Balances with Indirect Tax Authorities

Trade Advances
Prepaid Expenses

Fixed Deposit with Bank (Maturity more than 12 Months)

Other Receivable

Assets

In Rupees
As at As at
31st March, 2019  31st March, 2018
61,746 45.003
7,05,796 4.26,82,212
7,67.541 4,27,27,215
32,73,054 19,35,340
32,73,054 19,35,340
10,97,356 18,56,412
10,97.356 18.56,412
% =$=
32,46,136 16,85,160
16,15,133 59,56,113
19,78,350 19,18,590
6,65,151 5,89.045
13,702 5,660
75,18,472

1,01,54,567
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Mote 12: Share Capital

I. Authorised Share Capital (Rs)
Par Value per Share (Rs)
Number of Equity Shares

2. Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid up (Rs)

Par Value per Share (Rs)
Number of Equity Shares

3.  Deraiis of Sharehalders holding more than 5% of

Kansai Nerolac Paints Limited

Kamlesh A. Pai Panandiker (HUF)

Vishvanath . A. Pai Panandiker (HUF)

Shambhu A. Pai Panandiker (HUF)

Shanu A. Pai Panandiker (HUF)

Ramchandra A. Pai Panandiker (HUF)
Vishvanath P Panandiker Tdg.& Inv.Co. Pvt, Ltd.
Veda P Panandiker Tdg. & Inv. Co. Pvt, Ltd.
Shanu P Panandiker Trdg. & Inv. Co. Pvt. Ltd.
Ramchandra P Panandiker Tdg.& Inv.Co.Pvt.Ltd,
Atmaram P Palondicar Trdg. & Inv. Co. Pvt. Ltd.

4. Aggregated number of bonus share Issued during
the period of five years immediately preceding the
reporting date by capitalisation of Security premium

resgrnse

5. The Company has issued one class of shares, i.e.
equity shares, which enjoys similar rights in respact
of voting, payment of dividend and repayment of
capital. On winding up of the Company, the holders
of equity shares will be entitled to receive the
residual assets of the Company, remaining after

distribution of all preferential amounts
proportion to the number of equity shares hald,

6.  Reconciliation of the number of sharas outstanding:

Number of shares at the beginning of the year
lssued during the year

Number of shares at the end of the year
7. Capital Management:

For the purpose of the Com pany's capital
management, capital includes issued equity share
capital and all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity holders of the Company. The Company's
policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to
maintain investor, creditor and market confidence
and to sustain future development of the business.
Management monitors the return on capital, as well
as the levels of dividends to equity shareholders,
The Company is not subject to any externally

imposed capital requirements.

In Rupees
As at As at
31st March, 2019 31st March, 2018

5,00,00,000 5,00,00,000
10 10
50,00,000 50,00,000
2,99,52,000 2,99,52,000
10 10
29,95 200 29,95,200

% No of % Mo of

Shares Shares
100% 29,95,200 - -
- - 13.33% 2,99.200
- - 12.02% 3.60,000
- 9.01% 2,70,000
- - B.97% 268,800
- - BO7% 2,68,800
- - 8.65% 2.59,200
- - 8.09% 2,42,400
= - 6.61% 1,898,000
- - b.61% 1,98,000
- - 6.09% 1,82,400
Nil mil
29.95,200 29,95,200
29,895,200 29,95,200
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Mote 13 - Reserves and Surplus

In Rupees
Ceneral Reserve | Retained Earnings Total
Balance as at 15t April, 2017 83,892,356 11,22,41,2583 12,06,33,639
Profit for the year = (748,28 476) (7.4B,28,476)
Balance as ar 31st March, 2018 B3,92,356 3,74,12.808 458,035,164
In Rupesas
General Reserve | Retained Earnings Toral
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 83,592,358 3.74.12,808 4.58,05,164
Profit for the period - 1,68,51,928 1.68,51,928
Balance as at 31st March, 2019 83,92.356 5.42.64,735 6,26,57,091
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In Rupees
MNote 14: Borrowings As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
a. Term Loans From Banks and Financial Institution - 10,23,811

= 10,23,811
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The major components of income tax expense for the year are as under:

Income tax recognised in the Standalone Statement of Profic and Loss

Current tax;
In respect of current year

Deferred tax:
In respect of current year

Income fax expense recognised in the Standafone Statement of Brofit and
Loss

Income tax expense recognised in QC|
Deferred tax expense on remeasurements of defired henefit plans
Income tax expense recognised in OCI

keconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit for the year |s as
under;

Profit before tax
Ineome 1ax expense calculated at 34 044%
Others

Total
Tax expsnse as per Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss

The tax rate used for reconciliation above is the corporate tix rate of 34,944%

payable by corporate entities in india on taxable profits under indian tax law,
The comparny pays tax under Minimum Altermate Tz,

In Rupzes

Year ended 31 Year ended 31

March, 2019 March, 2018

44,00,000 -
(14,75 464) (2,243,833
29.24,536 (2,43,833)
1.97.76,464 (7,50,72,379)
69,710,688 (2,62,70,828)
{39.86,152} 2.60,26,995
29.24.536 {243,837
29.24.5%6 (2.43,833)

The major components of deferred tax (liabilities) / assets arising on account of timing differences are as follaws-

Balapce Profit and ac Balance
Particalars Sheat Loss Sheet
01.04.2018 2018-2019 2018-2019 31.03.201%
Difference between written down value | capital work in progress of Property, 16,738,618 (14,75 464) - 2,053,154
Plant and Equipment as per the books of accounts and Inesime Tax Act, 1961,
Deferrad tax (expensa) / Income B
Met Deferred rax liabilities 16.78.618 (14,75,464) - 2,03,154
Balance Profit and ot Balance
Particulars Shee Loss Sheet
01.04.2017 2017-2018 2017-2018 31.03.2018
Difference betwaen written down value | capital work in progress of Proparty, 19,22.507 (2,43,883) = 16,78,618
Flant and Equipment as per the books of accounts and rcame Tak Act, 1961,
Deferred tax (expense) | inceme
Met Deferred tax lghillties 19,22,501 _{2,43,883) - 16,78,618
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Note 16: Borrowings As at
31st March, 2019

In Rupees

As at
31st March, 2018

Short-term Term Loan

= 17,55,108
Working Capital Loan 10,50,05,546 14,68,36,042
10,50,05,546 14!35,91 150
Note 17: Trade Payables
Trade Payables
Payables to Micro and Small Enterprises* - -
Fayables to Others 14,52,29,344 B,37,25,6390
14,52,29,344 8,37,25,690
= —_— %=
“Based on the information and explaination
available with management, there are no amounts
due to the suppliers covered under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006.
Note 18: Other Financial Liabilities
Trade Deposits 32,94,339 30,94,339
32,94,339  _ 30,94,339
*There is no amount due and outstanding to be
credited to Investor Education and Protection Fund.
Note 19; Other Current Liabilities
Other Statutory Payables 36,38,698 43,52,061
Trade Receivables with Credit Balance 9,94,768 2,12,634
_ 46,33,466 _45,64,695
Note 20: Provisions
Provision for Compensated Absences 7,60,095 10,47,089
Provision for Gratuity 24,90,703 -
32,50,798 10,47,089
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MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

In Rupeas
Naote 21; Revenue from Qperations Period ended Year ended
31st March, 20189 315t March, 2018
Sale of Products (including excise duty)
Sales 68,64, 87,186 59,27.85,151
Less: Rebates = E
Total Sale of Products 68,64.87,186 §9,27,85,151
Orther Operating Revenueas
Sale of Scrap 25,006,611 7.26,523
Others 44,492 4,62 234
25.51.103 11.88,757
Revenue from Cperations EEESU.SE.Z &9 58.39,73.909
Note 22 Other Income
Dividend Income
Dividend from Investment - 15,000
- 15.000
Interest Income
Interest on Loans and Deposit 1.95.170 2,456,793
1,95,170 2,46.293
Other Non operating Income
Profit on Sale of Property, Plant and Equipment - 513,775
Foreign Exchange Gain (Net) - 1928156
Insurance Claims Received 2,68,005 -
268,005 24.41.931
463,175 27,03,223
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3 umed

Raw Material Consumed
Opening Stock
Add: Purchase
Less: Sales
Less: Closing Stock

Packing Material Consumed
Opening Stock
Add: Purchase
Less: Clasing Stock

Note 24: Changes in Inventaries of Finished Goods,
Stock-in-trade and Work-In-progress

Opening Stock
Finished Coods
Work-in-progress

Less: Closing Stock
Finished Coods
Work-in-progress:

Add Excise Duty Related to the Difference between the
Closing Stock and Opening Stock of Finished Coods

In Rupees
Period ended Year ended
31st March, 2019 315t March, 2018

3,56,23,098 3,20,G2,45)
51,19,51,705 37,92.61.524
521,887,161 3.56,23.078

49,53,87.642 37,57,00,908
545,346 0,04 B0O8
1,60,78,403 1.41,21,249
13,61,189 545,346

1.52.62,560 1.45,70,711

31,06,50.202 39,02,71.619
2,36,03,872 31,45.61,584
1,22,16,234 1,62, 77.894

3,58,19,906 5,08,39,478
4.03,24,577 2,36,03,652
87.57.553 1.22.16.234

4 90,82,130 31,58,19,886

= (5.62,397

i1,32,62,224) 1,44,57.185
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Not : Employee Benefits Expens

Salaries and Wages
Contribution to Provident and Other Funds
Staff Welfare Expense

Note 26: Depreciation and Amortisation

Depreciation on Property, Plant and Equipment

Amortisation on Other Intangible Assets

Note 27: Other Expenses

Consumption of Stores and Spare Parts
Power and Fuel

Repairs to Buildings

Repairs to Machinery

Freight and Forwarding Charges
Advertisement and Sales Promotion
Rent

Insurance

Miscellaneous Expenses

Period ended
31st March, 2019

In Rupees

Year ended
31st March, 2018

4,05,59,612 5,19,45,372
56,69,164 45,48,084
26,73,167 40,87,596
4,89,01,943 6.05,81,052
98,51,952 1,00,78,367
1,90,069 3,80,138
1,00,42,021 1,04,58,504
1,63,20,926 2,20,21,905
2,88,26,058 2,37,11,848
1,63,073. 4,89,898
49,60,524 46,03,158
2,38,81,351 2,05,59,148
2,18,602 3,70,712
16,90,494 54,94,880
747,722 11,67,927
2,70,73,077 4,24,03,222
— 103881825 _  12,08,22,697
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Year Ended
31st March,
2019

2 in Crores

Year Ended
31st March,
2018

Note 31.1; Payments to Auditors’

Auditors' Remuneration excluding Service Tax/GST
{Included in Miscellaneous Expenses in Note 31)
As Auditor
Statutory Audit 459233.00 459233.00
Report under Section 44AB of the Income-tax Act, 1961
Limited Review of Quarterly Results
In other capacity
Certification 32700.00
Other Matters
Reimbursements of Expenses

4,91,933.00 459233.00

ote 31.2: R ch and Developmen ns

Revenue Expenditure on Research and Development il
recognised in Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss is
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Note 32: Contingent Liabilitles apnd commitments
{to the extent not provided for)

Claims against the Company not acknowledged as
debt:

Siles Tax & Income Tax

The Company has made adeguate provisions in the
accounts for claims against the Company related to
direct and indirect taxes matters, except for certain
claims not acknowladged as debts,

Sales Tax

Amount totalling to Rs. 59,66,949/- from the Sales
Tax Authorities, a demand of sales tax for non-
submission of Form 'C’ for the year 2004-05.
Income Tax

Amount totalling te Rs. 27.70,026/- from the
Income Tax Authorities, a demand notice for
assessment year 2003-2004 Rs, 14,57,756/- and
2010-11 Rs: 13,12,270/-

The Company’s management is of the opinion that
ultimate liability in respect of these litigations shall
nat exceed the amount provided in books of
account, and shall not have any material adverse
effect on the Company's operation and financial
position,

Excise

Appeal No. E/115/2017 and E/579/2011 Against
OlA No. GOA/CEX/GSK/113 & 114 DL30.11.10 -
Excise duty difference of Himachal Pradesh Badd|
Corporate gquarantee

Corporate guarantee given to Bank - Banlk
Guarantee & letter of Credit

Mote 33: Earnings Per Equity Share
Numerator:
Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (Z in Crores)

Denominator:
Weighted Average Number of ardinary shares at
the beginning and end of the year

Basic and Diluted Earnings per Equity Share (in )

%in Crores
Year ended Year ended
31st March, 31st March,
2019 2018
B736975 8736975
2750923.00
15752418.00 B782863.00
27240316.00 17519838.00

1,68,51,928

259,95,200.00

5.63

(7,48,28,496)

29,95 200.00

(24.98)



MARPOL PRIVATE LIMITED
KOTES TD THE FINANCIAL STATEMEMNTS
Hote 34; felated Party Disclasures
A related party is @ person o entity that i related to the engity that s preparing its Finaneial Statermnents
La) A person or 4 close member of tha person's family Is ralated 1o a roporting entity if that person
{1y has contred o joint contral of the TEROMinG entity;
(i) has sigrificant influence over tha reparting antity: ar
Il is a member of the key management parsonnel of e repuing entity or of & parent of the repoTting entity,

(b} An entity Is refated 1o a reparting entity IFany af the following conditions applies:

{1 The entity and the repering entity are membars of the same group (which means thar each parent, subsidiary and
faliow subsidiary i related 1o the others),

(i} One entity is-an asseciate or Joint venture of the other entlty far an 2ssociste or joint verture of 3 member of a group
af which the other antiy ls 2 member),

(i) Beth entities are joint ventures of the same third pasty,

(1] One entity is-a joint ventsre of a third enthty and the other entity is an associate of the thied entaty,

I¥} The enitity |s a post~employment benefit plun for the benefit af employess of either the reparting entity o an entity
related 1o the reporting entity, If the reporting entity is itcell such 3 plan, the sponsaring employers are also refated o
tho reporting entety,

{wi) The antity is contolied or jointly controlled by a parson identified in {al.

il A& person [dentified in (a}di) has significant Inflisnce over the entity o is @ member of the key munagement
rarsonnel of the gniry (or of & parent of the sstity)

fwill) The entity, ar any member of a group of which it is-a pas, provides key maragoment persannel sarvices 1o the
feparting entity or to the parent of the reparting entity,

A related party transaction s a transfer of resources, services or obligations betwesn a repadting ently and a related
party, regardless-of whether a prica (s charged,

Parent and uitimate contralling antity

Name % Sharahalding  |Type Printipal Place of
2018 Z018 Activitias | oration
Kansal Paints Co. Ld, Japan Ultkmate Manufasturing  |Japan
cantralling Palnts
Authority
Kansah Merolac Faints Lud, 100 1] Parent Manufaciuring Indiz
ﬂl 15}

Kanzal Paints Co., Ltd, |5 the immediate ang uitimate holding campany of Kansal Neralac Paints Lid, nr is based and
listad In Japan, Financial Smieménts of Kansal Paints Co,, Ltd. are svallabie i public domain,

Key managemant personnnd are those perdons having authority and respansibility for planning, directing and contrafling We will change Mram KNPL HO.
the activitles af the entity, directly or indirectly, including any dirscior fwhether exscutve or otherwise) of that antity,

Key management personnel includes (1) Mr ™. P, Shah, Chairman (23 Mr. H, M. Bharuka, Ylce Chalrman and Mamaging

Diracvor, (3) Mr, N, N, Tata, Director (4) 6r, A fain, Wholstime Direcuar, (5) Mrs. Brinda Somaya, Directar (5) ML P. 0.

Pai, CFO and (%) Mr. G, T, Govindarajan, Company Secratary,

Refated Party Transactions:

B Crares
Transaction yps Relatian 2019 2018
Sale of finlshed goods fintermediates
-Kansal Nestlae Palnts Lid. Parenl antity BOEOGI4N. 00
Purchase of Goods

-kansal Neralas Pdints Lid, Parent entiey A8145325.00
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ote 34; Related Party Dlsclpsures
Relat=d Party Transactions ¥ inTroms
Transaction Tvpe Relation nig 2018 |
Dividend Paid

Dividend Income

Transfer under llcanse agreements
Rovalty Expanse

Technical Fees Including Reimbursement of Expanses

Rovalty Income

Details of any guaraniess glven

Transfers undar finance arrangements (including loans and
aqulty contributions In cash er in kind)

Equiry Investmant
\Intarest Income

Managemant conmracts including for deputatian of employees

Amaunt of outstanding balances, Including commitments,
thoir terms and conditions, Inciuding whether they are
secured, and the nature of the consideration to be provided
I sentlament

Receivable as at Year End
Kansal Neralac Paints Ltd, Parent pntity B2IBZE5.00

Payabrle as at Year End

Kansal Merodac Paints Lid, Farent entity 48535464800
Key Management Personrmel

2] short-1erm employer benafits 2409120.00 | Put Salaryemoulmants recelved by Oin

Related Party Transactions:
Ralated party transictions were made on tefms equivalent to those that prevail in an anm's length transactions.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Note 36: Seament Reporting

The Mznagement Committee of the Company, approved by the Board of Directors and Audit Committee performs the
function of allotment of resources and assessment of perfarmance of the Company. Considering the laval of activities
performed, frequency of their meetings and level of finality of their decisions, the Company has identified that Chicf
Operating Decision Maker function is being performed by the Management Committee. The financial Information
presented to the Management Committee in the context of results and for the purposes of approving the annual
operating plan Is on a consolidated basis for various products of the Company. As the Company's business activity

falls within a single business segment viz. 'Paints’ and the sales substantially heing in the domestic market. the
financial statement are reflective of the infarmation reguired by Ind AS 108 "Operating Seaments”,

Mote 37: Corporate Social Responsihilities

During the year, the Company has spent Nil (2017-2018 Nil} tawards ‘Corporate Social Responsibility Activities” (CSR
Activities).

{a) Gross amount required o be spent by the Company during the yvear NIl

(bl Amount spent during the year on:
2 in Crores

In Cash Yet to be Tatal
paid in cash

i |Construction facquisitiion of any asser - - =

il 1On purposes other than () above
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Waote 38 Financial Instruments: Fair values and Rigk Management

(A) Accounting Classifieations and Fair Values

The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, Including their
taviale Im the fair waliie Riararcha

Other financial
Year | At FVTPL |assets | liabilities ~| Level 1 | Lewel 2 | Level 3 Total
Amortlsed cost

Financial Assets measured at Fair value
MNon-current Assets: 20158 1.62,07T6.00 .62, 076.00
Investments (MNote 5) 2018 20,55.247.00 20,55,247.00
Current Assets: 015 ! = -
Investments (Note 4) 2018 | 5.00,000.00 5,00,000.00
Financial Assets not measured at Fair Value
Non-current Assets: Other | 2019 = 12,6535, 564.00 12,6%9,39,564.00
Einanrial Assets (Note G 2018 = 8,86,33,753.00 8,86,33,753.00
Current Assets: Trade 2019 = T5.65.61.249.00 TE.65.61.249.00
\Receivables (Nare 7) 2018 - 12,08,11,416.00 12,08,11,416.00
Current Assets: Cash and 2019 = 67, 54T1.00 767, 5AT.00
Cash Equivalent (Note 8) 2018 - 4.27.27,215.00 4,27.27.215.00
Current Assets: Bank 2019 = 32,73, 054.00 IT 7305400 |
Balances other than Cash 2018 - 19.35,340.00 19,35 ,340.00
Current Assets: Loans 2019 - 1057 356.00 10,97 35500
(MNote 10) 2018 - 18,56,412.00 18.56,412.00
Current Assets: Other 2019 = 73 1847200 R Y]
Financial Assets (Note 1) 2018 = 1,01,54,567.00 1,01,54.567.00
Financial Liabllities not measured at Fair Value
MNon-current Liabilities: 20149 — 10,50,05, 54600 : 10,5005, 546.00

rrowings (Mote 16} 2013 - 14,85.91,150.00 14,8%,91,150.00
Current Liabilities: Trade 2019 - 14,5229 344 00 14,5229, 343.00
Payable (Note 17) 2018 - 8,37,25,690.00 8,37,25,690.00
Current Liabilities: Other 019 = 32,94 339.00 3a,94,339.00
Financlal Liabilities (Note 2018 = 30,94,339.00 310,94,335.00
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(B} Financial Risk Managemant
The Company has exposure 1o the following risks arising from financial instruments:
- Credit Risk
= Liguldity Risk
- Market Risk

(1) Risk Management Framework

Risk Management Committes owersees the management of these risks. Management is supported by Risk Mansgement Committee thatadvises on
financial risks and the appropriate financlal risk governanee framework for the Company. The Risk Management Committes provides assurance to the

management that Company's risk activities are governed by appropriare policies and procedures and that financlal risks are [dentified. measured and
managed in accordance with the Company's policies and risk objectives.

The Company's Risk Management Pallcles are established to Identify and analyses the risks faced by the Company to sel approprlate risk limits and
contrals and o monlter risks and adhersnce to limits, Risk Management Policies and Systems are reviewed regularky to reflect changes In marker
conditions and the Company's activities. The Company, through its training and management standards and pracedures, aims to maintaln a disciplined
and constructive contral environment in which all employess understand their rolas

and cbhligations

{ii} Credit Risk

Credit Risk |s the risk of financial loss to the Company if & customer ar counterpanty to 4 financlal Instrument falls 1o meet its contractual abligations,

and arises principally from the Company's receivables fram customers; loans and investments in debt securities. The carrylng amounts of financial
assetz represent the maximum credit risk exposurs.

Trade Recelvables and Loans:

The Company’s exposure ta credit risk Is influenced mainty by the individual characteristics af sach customer. The Bisk Management Commiites has
eitablished a credl policy undar which each mew customer |s analysed individually for credinworthiness before the Company's standard paymeant and
delivery terms and conditions are offered, The Company’s revlew Includas financial statements, credit agency Informatlon, industry information and in
some cases bank referances. Sales limits are established for each customer and reviewsd

constantly, Any sales exceeding those limits require approval frem the management,

Financial Instruments and Cash Depasits

Credit risks from balances with banks and financial institutions |s managed by the Company's Treasury Department in accordance with the Company's
poliey. Investments of surplus funds are made only with approved counterparties and within cradit limits assigned to each counterparty, The limits are
a2k to minimise the concentration of risks and therefore mitigate financial lass through counterparty’s potential failure to make payments,

(Hiy Liguidity Risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations assoclated with its financial fiabilities that are settied by
delivering cash or another financlal asset, The Company’s approach to managing liquidity 1s to ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficlent

liquidity to meet its liabilities when they are due, under both narmal and stressed canditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage
1o the Company's reputation.

Maturities of Financial Liabilities:
The table below analyse the Company's financial llabliities into relovant maty ring grouping based on thelr contractual matwrities:

¥ in Crores
on Upta 3 months to | & manths 1 year to 3 years and
Year anded demand 3 months 6 manths to 1 year 2 years above Yol

Borrowings 31-03-2019 10.50,05,546.00 10,50,05, 546,00
31-03-2018 14,8591,150.00 14,85 91, 150.00

Trade Payables |[31-03-20149 14,52 29,344 00 14,52.29,344.00
31-03-2018 837,25 69000 8,37.25.690.00

Qther Financial|31-03-2019 - 32.94.339.00 32.94,3392.00
Liabilitles 11-03-2018 30.94,339.00 310,94,339.00

{iv) Market Risk

Markat risk |5 the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial Instrument will fuctuate because of changes in market prices, Market price
comprises three types of risks: Interest rate risk, currency risk and sther price risk, such as-equity price risk and commedity price risk. The objective of
market risk management is to manage and contral market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the return. In respect af

monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, the Company's policy Is 18 ensure that its net exposure |5 kept o an acceptable
lewel.
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NOTES TO THE FINAMNCIAL STATEMENTS
Mefe 38: Fimancial Instruments; Fair valves and Risk Managemant (contd.}

i) Market Risk (conid.)

The sammary quanferathe dita about the Compamy's sxgosure to currency rsk Fy &3 Tollows:

Flnancta! CHF EURD Y £ ciP | 2am LS M Tori
Trade 11-03-3009 15 47 66500 | 15496858000 | 15656124500
103301 17081041800 | 1
- = — —_— oot =
Trads 31-{3-2009- 16,15133.00 (I ENEENT
31 -Di-za18 _ 5056 113,00 1
Fimancial
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i} Fodeian Currency Sensithvity Analysis
The following table demansirate the senalibdty (o A rersoiabde possitle change in CHF., EUBE, [PV and S0 exthange rtes, with all other variabie held comstant.
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Valuation technigaes and significant unohssmable inputs

Type

Yalieation techpique
Inputs

Dither Kon-current assets;
Ivesinient megsured ai
amartized cost

Significant unpbaervabie

Inter-relatiorship between

significant unobservabbe Inputs and falr value measursment

Ciscounted cash Fows: Th valiatien madel
conslders the

presant vafus ol sepecied receipt) paymant
discounted using appregiate discounting

rates. rare

= Forecast Anhiual iovenan

- Farecast EBIDA aroih margin
~ Rlsk adfuitmont discounted

Generally, A changes in the annual redensie growth
accompiisl slmilar chanpe in
LRIDA marging

rate |3

Current Irsestmanis - in
imital fopds

The lair valuey of investments in

mutual fund unlis is based an the net asset
waluo "MaNT) &5 stated by the issuers of
these mutoal fund units in the published
statements a5 at Balance Sheet date, NaY
represents the geice al which the issuer wdl|
Izxue further units of mutaal Tund ond the
price al which issuers will redesin sach wnits
Tram the myestors

Har applicalile

el apsilicable

The Company determined thi fair valie measaroments of invesEmesis -ingquoted categoriced (n Leve! 7 basied on price aareed in & sale transaction betwesn uarelated panies,

Carrying pmints of cash and carh equivalents, trade recehvabios, loans and trade payables as 3t 3150 March, 2015 and 315 March, 2018 aparoximate tha falr value, Differsnce

betaren carrying amounts und fair values of bank deposits, -urmuhd balances with banks, other Aeanclal disets,

measured at amortlsed cost b pot signdficant in each of the years presented,
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